
From:	
  Walter	
  Hermreck	
  
	
  
To:	
  Senate	
  Federal	
  and	
  State	
  Affairs	
  Committee	
  
	
  
I	
  recently	
  retired	
  from	
  the	
  Army	
  a	
  little	
  over	
  2	
  years	
  ago.	
  I	
  am	
  a	
  combat	
  veteran	
  with	
  
24	
  years	
  of	
  military	
  experience.	
  In	
  my	
  various	
  assignments	
  I	
  have	
  faced	
  various	
  
difficult	
  challenges,	
  which	
  I	
  was	
  able	
  to	
  overcome.	
  After	
  moving	
  to	
  Gardner,	
  KS	
  I	
  
took	
  an	
  active	
  interest	
  in	
  some	
  of	
  the	
  things	
  that	
  were	
  happening	
  in	
  our	
  school	
  
district.	
  I	
  decided	
  to	
  use	
  the	
  open	
  records	
  act	
  to	
  work	
  to	
  expose	
  some	
  of	
  the	
  
behaviors	
  that	
  I	
  thought	
  might	
  be	
  less	
  than	
  ethical	
  with	
  our	
  school	
  board	
  and	
  
superintendent.	
  	
  
	
  
After	
  it	
  became	
  apparent	
  to	
  some	
  at	
  our	
  school	
  district	
  that	
  I	
  was	
  working	
  to	
  hold	
  
them	
  accountable	
  for	
  things	
  that	
  were	
  happening,	
  I	
  felt	
  like	
  they	
  starting	
  putting	
  
forth	
  obstacles	
  to	
  prevent	
  me	
  from	
  gaining	
  access	
  to	
  the	
  public	
  information	
  I	
  asked	
  
for.	
  This	
  came	
  to	
  a	
  head	
  after	
  I	
  sent	
  a	
  request	
  on	
  4	
  September	
  2012.	
  Enclosed	
  is	
  the	
  
email	
  summation	
  and	
  the	
  attached	
  emails	
  as	
  evidence.	
  
	
  
4	
  September	
  2012	
  (Email	
  1)	
  
	
  
I	
  requested	
  the	
  USD	
  231	
  “Policies	
  and	
  Procedures”	
  for	
  handling	
  and	
  guidelines	
  on	
  
Activity	
  Funds.	
  To	
  include:	
  

1. The	
  line	
  of	
  authority	
  
2. Segregation	
  of	
  duties	
  related	
  to	
  activity	
  funds	
  
3. Internal	
  controls	
  over	
  the	
  activity	
  
4. Disbursement	
  procedures	
  for	
  student	
  activity	
  funds.	
  

	
  
4	
  September	
  2012	
  (Email	
  2)	
  
	
  
I	
  received	
  an	
  email	
  back	
  from	
  Ms.	
  Leann	
  Northway,	
  Director	
  of	
  Community	
  
Relations	
  notifying	
  me	
  that	
  my	
  request	
  was	
  ready	
  for	
  pick	
  up	
  at	
  the	
  USD	
  office	
  and	
  I	
  
could	
  provide	
  the	
  receptionist	
  a	
  check	
  for	
  $122.47.	
  I	
  was	
  charged	
  for	
  6	
  copies	
  @	
  .25	
  
a	
  piece	
  and	
  $120.97	
  for	
  2	
  hours	
  and	
  30	
  minutes	
  of	
  time	
  involved	
  for	
  a	
  simple	
  
request	
  of	
  a	
  District	
  Policy	
  Letter.	
  Their	
  explanation	
  was	
  that	
  they	
  had	
  to	
  send	
  this	
  
to	
  their	
  accountant	
  for	
  balances	
  I	
  had	
  not	
  requested.	
  
	
  
4	
  September	
  2012	
  (Email	
  3)	
  
	
  
I	
  emailed	
  Ms.	
  Leann	
  Northway	
  noting	
  my	
  displeasure	
  with	
  the	
  fees	
  and	
  to	
  clarify	
  
that,	
  as	
  my	
  email	
  clearly	
  stated,	
  I	
  only	
  needed	
  the	
  policy.	
  I	
  did	
  not	
  request	
  any	
  fund	
  
balances	
  or	
  the	
  like.	
  I	
  explained	
  that	
  the	
  policy	
  letter	
  should	
  have	
  been	
  available	
  on	
  
her	
  computer.	
  I	
  asked	
  her	
  if	
  she	
  could	
  review	
  my	
  original	
  email	
  and	
  leave	
  out	
  the	
  
financial	
  statement	
  that	
  I	
  did	
  not	
  request.	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  



5	
  September	
  2012	
  (Email	
  4)	
  
	
  
I	
  received	
  a	
  short	
  email	
  from	
  Ms.	
  Northway	
  that	
  she	
  would	
  forward	
  my	
  email	
  to	
  the	
  
Finance	
  Department	
  for	
  clarification.	
  
	
  
5	
  September	
  2012	
  (Email	
  5)	
  
	
  
I	
  conveyed	
  my	
  gratitude	
  to	
  Ms.	
  Northway	
  and	
  explained	
  such	
  a	
  large	
  fee	
  was	
  
shocking	
  for	
  something	
  as	
  simple	
  as	
  a	
  document.	
  I	
  also	
  asked	
  if	
  they	
  had	
  the	
  policy	
  
letters	
  at	
  the	
  district	
  office	
  for	
  public	
  review.	
  
	
  
6	
  September	
  2012	
  (Email	
  6)	
  
	
  
I	
  visited	
  the	
  district	
  office	
  and	
  spoke	
  with	
  Ms.	
  Northway	
  in	
  person.	
  A	
  friend	
  of	
  mine	
  
went	
  with	
  me.	
  At	
  this	
  point	
  I	
  found	
  out	
  that	
  the	
  district	
  policy	
  letters	
  were	
  in	
  a	
  large	
  
binder.	
  
	
  
I	
  never	
  heard	
  back	
  from	
  Ms.	
  Northway	
  concerning	
  this	
  issue.	
  Since	
  she	
  said	
  she	
  was	
  
going	
  to	
  get	
  the	
  accounting	
  department	
  involved	
  I	
  figured	
  she	
  was	
  fixing	
  it.	
  A	
  friend	
  
of	
  mine	
  went	
  to	
  the	
  USD	
  a	
  few	
  days	
  later	
  and	
  made	
  a	
  copy	
  of	
  the	
  policy	
  letter	
  I	
  was	
  
looking	
  for,	
  which	
  was	
  in	
  the	
  policy	
  binder.	
  
	
  
15	
  November	
  2012	
  (Email	
  7	
  and	
  8)	
  
	
  
I	
  did	
  another	
  KORA	
  request	
  from	
  Ms.	
  Lisa	
  Berg	
  our	
  Clerk.	
  This	
  time	
  I	
  asked	
  in	
  
advance	
  how	
  much	
  it	
  would	
  be	
  for	
  the	
  request	
  to	
  be	
  filled.	
  She	
  detailed	
  her	
  work	
  
and	
  said	
  it	
  would	
  be	
  $12.00,	
  which	
  I	
  considered	
  more	
  than	
  acceptable.	
  	
  
	
  
However,	
  Ms.	
  Berg	
  stated	
  that	
  due	
  to	
  the	
  unpaid	
  balance	
  on	
  my	
  September	
  4	
  request	
  
she	
  would	
  not	
  fill	
  this	
  request	
  for	
  me.	
  I	
  explained	
  that	
  I	
  had	
  spoken	
  with	
  Ms.	
  
Northway	
  and	
  I	
  thought	
  it	
  was	
  taken	
  care	
  of.	
  	
  
	
  
At	
  this	
  point	
  I	
  called	
  Ms.	
  Berg	
  and	
  asked	
  her	
  if	
  the	
  district	
  had	
  a	
  policy	
  in	
  place	
  for	
  a	
  
citizen	
  to	
  dispute	
  the	
  charges	
  of	
  a	
  KORA	
  request.	
  She	
  told	
  me	
  to	
  contact	
  Ms.	
  
Northway.	
  After	
  several	
  attempts	
  I	
  finally	
  reached	
  her.	
  She	
  said	
  there	
  wasn’t	
  
anything	
  she	
  could	
  do	
  and	
  she	
  told	
  me	
  to	
  call	
  Jeremy	
  McFadden,	
  head	
  of	
  the	
  
accounting	
  department.	
  	
  
	
  
I	
  left	
  Jeremy	
  several	
  messages	
  and	
  finally	
  made	
  contact	
  with	
  him.	
  We	
  had	
  a	
  long	
  
conversation	
  and	
  I	
  explained	
  to	
  him	
  that	
  I	
  was	
  at	
  the	
  end	
  of	
  the	
  road	
  on	
  this	
  and	
  Ms.	
  
Berg	
  and	
  Ms.	
  Northway	
  had	
  passed	
  me	
  to	
  him.	
  I	
  told	
  him	
  my	
  next	
  stop	
  was	
  probably	
  
going	
  to	
  have	
  to	
  be	
  the	
  JoCo	
  District	
  Attorney.	
  He	
  told	
  me	
  that	
  Dr.	
  Gilhaus,	
  our	
  
Superintendent	
  and	
  Ms.	
  Northway	
  brought	
  him	
  the	
  request	
  and	
  told	
  him	
  to	
  do	
  what	
  
he	
  did.	
  He	
  told	
  me	
  I	
  could	
  try	
  asking	
  for	
  them	
  to	
  withdraw	
  my	
  request	
  but	
  there	
  was	
  
nothing	
  else	
  he	
  could	
  do.	
  



	
  
11	
  December	
  2012	
  (Email	
  9)	
  
	
  
I	
  sent	
  an	
  email	
  to	
  Ms.	
  Northway	
  and	
  Dr.	
  Gilhaus	
  along	
  with	
  a	
  CC	
  to	
  Detective	
  Brian	
  
Denton	
  at	
  the	
  JoCo	
  District	
  Attorney’s	
  office.	
  I	
  requested	
  they	
  rescind	
  my	
  request	
  
entirely	
  and	
  remove	
  my	
  name	
  from	
  the	
  website	
  stating	
  that	
  I	
  owe	
  money.	
  I	
  believe	
  
that	
  this	
  may	
  be	
  libelous	
  in	
  nature.	
  I	
  told	
  them	
  that	
  I	
  felt	
  that	
  the	
  debt	
  was	
  not	
  valid	
  
and	
  that	
  they	
  were	
  using	
  this	
  to	
  prevent	
  me	
  from	
  submitting	
  further	
  requests	
  for	
  
documents	
  under	
  the	
  KORA,	
  which	
  in	
  itself	
  is	
  a	
  violation	
  of	
  the	
  law.	
  
	
  
I	
  received	
  no	
  response	
  from	
  either	
  party.	
  
	
  
Page	
  10	
  is	
  a	
  copy	
  of	
  the	
  USD	
  website	
  where	
  they	
  have	
  had	
  me	
  listed	
  since	
  early	
  
October	
  as	
  owing	
  money.	
  I	
  am	
  a	
  retired	
  Army	
  Combat	
  Veteran	
  and	
  I	
  am	
  working	
  
hard	
  in	
  our	
  community	
  to	
  hold	
  our	
  elected	
  officials	
  accountable	
  for	
  their	
  actions.	
  I	
  
feel	
  that	
  Dr.	
  Gilhaus,	
  Ms.	
  Northway	
  and	
  others	
  at	
  USD	
  231	
  did	
  this	
  to	
  discredit	
  me	
  
and	
  prevent	
  me	
  from	
  making	
  further	
  requests.	
  The	
  fact	
  that	
  I	
  cannot	
  go	
  to	
  my	
  school	
  
district	
  	
  
	
  
As	
  a	
  citizen	
  and	
  a	
  tax	
  payer	
  I	
  not	
  only	
  have	
  the	
  right,	
  but	
  the	
  responsibility	
  to	
  my	
  
family,	
  my	
  fellow	
  citizens	
  of	
  the	
  community	
  and	
  even	
  the	
  elected	
  officials	
  
themselves,	
  to	
  hold	
  them	
  accountable	
  for	
  the	
  decisions	
  they	
  make.	
  This	
  can	
  only	
  be	
  
accomplished	
  by	
  ensuring	
  citizens	
  having	
  easy	
  and	
  predictable	
  access	
  to	
  public	
  
records.	
  The	
  current	
  law	
  allows	
  for	
  a	
  public	
  entity	
  to	
  put	
  up	
  roadblocks	
  or	
  shut	
  
someone	
  out	
  from	
  their	
  right	
  to	
  accessibility.	
  There	
  HAS	
  to	
  be	
  a	
  uniform	
  standard	
  
applied	
  to	
  all	
  public	
  entities	
  and	
  how	
  they	
  provide	
  records	
  under	
  the	
  KORA.	
  Until	
  
this	
  is	
  done	
  we	
  do	
  not	
  truly	
  have	
  a	
  system	
  of	
  open	
  records	
  and	
  therefore	
  we	
  do	
  not	
  
ensure	
  the	
  public	
  an	
  avenue	
  to	
  hold	
  those	
  officials	
  accountable.	
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